
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 30 August 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Tuesday, 7 September 2021 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's 

Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 
Cabinet 
Members: 

 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor John Dawson 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Ian Stokes, Vice-Chairman of the Council 

 
 

 

Agenda 

1.   Comments from members of the public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 

discretion. 

 

2.   Apologies for absence  
   

3.   Disclosure of interests  
   

4.   Action notes of the meeting held on 20 July 2021 (Pages 3 - 11) 
   

5.   Updates from previous meeting (To Follow) 
   

Finance, Economic 

Development and 

Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

6.   Breathing Space Update (Pages 13 - 19) 
   

7.   Finance Update Report: April - July 2021 (Pages 21 - 50) 
   

8.   Review of Special Expense Areas (Pages 51 - 55) 
   

9.   Progress on the New Customer Feedback Process (Pages 57 - 76) 
   

10.   Update on Local Authority Searches (Pages 77 - 80) 
   

11.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 (Pages 81 - 84) 
   

12.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstance decides is urgent 

 

   



 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Tuesday, 20 July 2021 - 10.30 am 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NH31 6PZ 

 

 

 

 
Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman) 
 

 

Members in attendance 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance) 
 
Officers  
Assistant Director for Finance, Section 151 Officer (Richard Wyles) 
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright) 
Head of Revenues and Benefits (Clare Moses) 
Corporate Project Officer (Debbie Roberts) 
Acting Principal Democratic Officer (Shelley Thirkell) 
 

 
12. Comments from members of the public 

 
No comments from members of the public were received. 
 

13. Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Bob Adams, John 
Dawson and Phil Dilks. 

3

Agenda Item 4



 

 
Councillor Jacky Smith would be substituting for Councillor John Dawson and 
Councillor Ashley Baxter would be substituting for Councillor Phil Dilks, for this 
meeting only. 
 

14. Disclosure of interests 
 
No disclosures of interest were received. 
 

15. Action notes of the meeting held on 29 June 2021 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and agreed that the action notes from the meeting 
held on 29 June 2021 were a correct record.  
 

16. Updates from previous meeting 
 
Action point 6 – Special Expenses Area. The Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources noted that he and the Section 151 Officer would be attending 
the next full Bourne Town Council meeting on 31 August 2021 to discuss the 
Special Expenses Area for Bourne.  
 
Action point 10 – Report on the Asset Management Review and cost 
savings. The Vice-Chairman noted that he had held a discussion with the 
Chief Executive on the scoping of the report of the Asset Management Review 
and cost savings. It was confirmed that this would be included as part of a 
wider piece of work reported to Cabinet in advance of the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meeting to be held in the Autumn. 
 
The remaining contents of the Action Sheet were noted. 
 

17. Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 
 
The Head of Revenues and Benefits presented a report which reviewed the 
Council’s Local Council Tax Support Scheme in advance of the 2022/23 
financial year and sought comments from the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
regarding potential changes to the scheme in readiness for public 
consultation. 
 
Based upon the current core elements of the existing scheme, a range of 
different scenarios had been modelled, along with an assumed increased 
charge of Council Tax equating to 3%. Caseload levels were a significant 
factor when considering changes to a scheme, with a variance in caseload 
impacting the cost of the scheme. The volatility of caseload was therefore a 
concern and the impact of any changes would not be known for some time. As 
a result, varying changes to caseload had also been included as part of the 
financial modelling, but these assumptions were caveated on events that were 

4



 

outside of the Council’s control or influence, such as the consequences of 
Covid-19 pandemic. The full outcome of this modelling work was set out in 
Appendix 1, together with different options, changes to core elements of the 
scheme and wider considerations outlined in the table at paragraph 1.4 of the 
report. 
 
It was reported that the current Council Tax Support Scheme provided 
maximum support at 80% of a person’s liability. As a result, the Council Tax 
bill was raised for the residual amount and this was typically around £277.74 
per annum, based on a Band B property. Any changes to the scheme would 
result in an increase or decrease to the residual amount and, therefore, 
consideration may be needed to the disproportionate impact this may have on 
the cost of collection. 
 
The indicative timetable to approve any change to the new scheme was set 
out at paragraph 2.2 of the report, with a final decision required by Council on 
27 January 2022 prior to implementation from 1 April 2022. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 
 

• A query was raised regarding the implementation of national schemes. 
 
It was confirmed that the Secretary of State would notify the Council regarding 
any positive change which could impact customers, so that this could be 
reflected in the Council Tax Scheme. It was confirmed that an amendment 
would be made to the report to reflect this. 
 

• Concerns were raised regarding changes to universal credit.  
 
It was confirmed that if a reduction in universal credit was introduced, there 
would be a subsequent increase in council tax support. At present, no 
decision had been made regarding this. It was confirmed that some wording 
would be added to report to advise of this volatility.  

 

• A query was raised regarding the figures under paragraph 6 of the 
report relating to the reduction of the capital limit.  
 

• A query was raised regarding a possible reimbursement of costs by 
Lincolnshire County Council. 
 

It was confirmed that consultation would take place between the Council, 
Lincolnshire County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner should 
there be any formal proposed changes. It was advised that the Scheme 
currently sat within the remit of the Council and no conversations regarding 
reimbursement had taken place.  
 

• Members questioned whether there was an option to increase the 
support available for the district’s most vulnerable residents.  

5



 

 
It was confirmed that an option to do this was outlined in Appendix A of the 
report. However, if the award was to be increased it would need to be 
increased for all customers. To amend this system, an equality impact 
assessment would need to be undertaken.  

 

• A question was asked as to how the Council’s scheme compared with 
other districts across the county?  

 
It was noted that South Kesteven District Council was the only Council across 
Lincolnshire not to have any other adjustments alongside the 80% maximum 
reward. It was confirmed that this reflected the modelling of a maximum 
reward scheme and that it was easy for customers to understand.  
 

• A Member asked whether the Council could consider undertaking a 
vulnerability assessment to identify whether more support could be 
offered to the most vulnerable residents across the district.  

 
It was advised that a Top Up scheme was available as part of wider council 
tax support. This scheme ensured funds could be available for customers 
experiencing a shortfall between their council tax award and their remaining 
liability for council tax.  
 

• One Member asked whether more funding could be given to the Top 
Up Scheme.  

 

• A query was raised as to why the Council’s Council Tax Support 
Scheme did not have a banding cap. 

 
It was advised that as the majority of customers were either in Band A or B 
properties, it was unlikely that any savings could be made through the 
introduction of a banding cap.  
 
ACTIONS: 
 

a) That work is undertaken around an equality impact assessment to 
consider whether additional support is available for vulnerable 
residents. 
 

b) To consider reviewing the Top Up Scheme, and that these findings 
be presented as a report to the Committee in the Autumn. 

 
DECISION: 
 
That the Committee supports the recommendation outlined in the report 
that the current Council Tax Support Scheme be maintained for 2022/23.  
 

6



 

18. Finance Update Report: April - May 2021 
 
The Interim Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer presented a report 
which informed the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s 2021/22 financial position 
as at the end of May 2021 and covered the general fund revenue budget, the 
housing revenue account budget and respective capital programmes. 
 
With regard to the revenue budget associated with the general fund, the 
budget set by Council on 1 March 2021 was £17.351 million. Cabinet, at its 
meeting on 13 July 2021, had approved budget carry forwards thus increasing 
the overall budget to  £19.19m and this was shown at table  paragraph 2.2 of 
the report which outlined the actual position as at 31 May 2021. 
 
It was reported that the co-payment losses scheme had continued into 
2021/22 and would cover income losses for the period 1 April to 30 June 
2021. The provisional claim for April and May based on the actual net income 
losses declared in accordance with the Government scheme criteria was 
£134,000 and would be utilised to cover specific income shortfalls as defined 
by the scheme. 
 
Significant income streams for the general fund were outlined in table 3 of the 
report and totalled £6.805m based upon the current budget, with actual 
income to date totalling £2.189m and was £146,000 lower than budgeted, 
equating to a 2% variance overall. 
 
The 2021/22 general fund capital programme was £4.085m which had been 
approved by Council on 1 March 2021. The summary of movements 
associated with the capital programme was set out in table 4 of the report, 
with the general fund capital position being summarised in table 5. 
 
The Council’s housing revenue account revenue budget as set by Council on 
1 March 2021 was £5.435m, with the budgeted surplus being fully utilised to 
fund future investment in stock growth and property maintenance. Table 6 of 
the report summarised the summary of movements in relation to this revenue 
budget, with table 7 outlining the actual position as at 31 May 2021. 
 
The housing revenue account capital programme for 2021/22 was set by 
Council on 1 March 2021 as £22.716m, with table 8 of the report showing a 
summary of movements and table 9 outlining the actual position as at 31 May 
2021. 
 
It was reported that cashflow management remained an important area of 
focus given the unpredictability in the Council’s income streams, particularly 
Council Tax and Business Rates, whilst the Council had legal obligations to 
continue to pay precepts and contractual payments. An assurance was given 
that cash flow management remained a key focus and was reviewed daily, 
with the cashflow model outlined at Appendix A of the report. This showed a 

7



 

positive cash flow position with collection rates also performing strongly in the 
current climate. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 
 

• Concerns were raised regarding a lack of action relating to the HRA 
Capital Programme. It was stated that the programme had seen a 
significant underspend.  

 
It was noted that decision makers were waiting for the results of the Stock 
Condition Survey Waiting before committing any money to the building of new 
housing. It was advised that the Council needed to know the current condition 
of existing housing stock before identifying funds for refurbishments. The 
Stock Condition Survey results were expected in October.  
 

• A query was raised as to why the Leisure Maintenance and Leisure 
Transformation Programmes were not referenced to within the report. 

 
It was stated that revenue maintenance budgets were included within the 
budget framework each year. The variance analysis review had not identified 
any issues with the budget levels that had been set.  
 

• A query was asked as to whether there had been any progress relating 
to the St Martin’s Park project. 

 
It was noted that the project was currently going through the necessary 
planning process. There had been no pressure from a financial position which 
meant that there was no need for a comment within the report. The Council 
had agreed that the Regeneration Reserve would act as the primary source of 
funding for the project. 
 

• It was suggested that social housing delivery should be monitored 
separately alongside the monitoring of affordable housing delivery.  

 

• A comment was made relating to the review of the Council-operated 
car parks and the subsequent price changes to parking charges. A 
concern was raised that the rise in parking charges had led to fewer 
residents using the car parks. 

 
It was noted that a briefing on the car parking reviews would take place the 
following week.  
 
ACTIONS: 
 

a) Following the receipt of the Stock Condition Survey, that the 
analysis of the results from a financial perspective be added to the 
Work Programme. 
 

8



 

b) That an appendix be included alongside the subsequent report 
outlining the criteria for how the Covid Recovery Reserve will be 
utilised. 

 
DECISIONS: 
 
That the Committee notes the actual 2021/22 position for the General 
Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of May 2021. 
 

19. Progress on the New Complaints Procedure 
 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance presented a report which 
provided the Committee which an update on a new complaints procedure.  
 
Since 2013, the Council had operated a Customer Feedback Process 
consisting of compliments, comments and complaints. Feedback could be 
provided via completion of an online form, emailing the customer services 
team, calling the customer service team or submitting written correspondence. 
 
The new complaints system would involve a two-stage complaints process for 
the Council which would be in line with the handling of housing complaints.  
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 
 

• The importance of clear communication between the Council and the 
customers it served was emphasised. It was stated that a clear audit trail 
was needed across all departments to ensure consistency. 
 

• Regarding the proposed system, it was asked how complaints would be 
logged. 

 
It was noted that all phone calls to customer services would be logged, as well 
as emails, letters, and face to face correspondence. 
 

• Whether the scope of the new system would be limited to Housing as a 
service area only. 

 
It was noted that the new system had been prompted by issues within 
housing, but that it would be incorporated across the whole authority going 
forward.  
  

• Where the current figures regarding complaints and response time were 
scrutinised.  

 
It was confirmed that at present, underperformance reports went to the 
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees on a regular basis. Each 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had their own work programmes and areas 

9



 

to scrutinise, with each work programme carrying their own performance 
measures. 
 

• One Member suggested the development of a simple flowchart which 
would outline the new procedure for handling complaints across the whole 
Council. 

 

• Members asked for a timeline to be made available which would outline 
the timeframe for the delivery of the new process. 

 

• A question was asked as to what a fully delivered project would look like? 
  
It was noted that a fully delivered project would involve the system 
implemented across the Council and comprehensive training provided to staff 
around the process. 
 
It was confirmed that the Deputy Chief Executive would be leading the project.  
 
ACTIONS: 
 
a) For the project initiation document to be presented back to the 

Committee at the next meeting, with updates on the observations 
outlined during this meeting.  

 
b) For the complaints figures across the whole authority to be 

provided to Committee Members. 
 
c)  For a flowchart to be developed as part of the project, outlining 

the new procedure for handling complaints.  
 
DECISIONS: 
 
That the Committee: 
 

• Notes the update regarding a new complaints system. 
 

• Supports progressing the implementation of a two-stage 
complaints process for the Council, which is in line with the 
handling of housing complaints. 

 

• Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance to commence the 
corporate project and provide regular updates on progress to the 
Committee. 

 
20. Work Programme 2021 - 2022 

 
The Committee received the Work Programme for 2021 – 2022.  

10



 

 
21. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstance 

decides is urgent 
 
There was none. 
 
The meeting closed at 12:26. 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

7 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources 

           

 

Breathing Space Update 

To provide an update regarding the Debt Respite Regulations and the introduction of the 
Breathing Space Policy.  

 

 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Head of Revenues and Benefits 

 
 01476 406484 

  Claire.moses@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance and ICT 20 August 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 26 August 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

27 August 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to note the introduction of the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing 
Space), along with the financial impact and arrangements that have been put in 
place to enable the Council to respond to the legislative requirements. 

 

13

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Moratorium) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 - SI 2020 No 1311 were made on 17 November 

2020 and came into force on 4 May 2021. 

1.2 The regulations give people legal protection from most creditor action while they receive 

advice and enter an appropriate debt solution.  This will include residents who are debtors 

of South Kesteven District Council, for example, Council Tax, Debtors invoices, Housing 

Benefit Overpayment, Rent etc 

1.3 On 4 May 2021, South Kesteven District Council, as a creditor, were required to introduce 

the Debt Respite Scheme, Breathing Space. There are two types of Breathing Space – 

Standard and Mental Health crisis 

1) 1) Standard Breathing Space is available to any resident and gives them legal 

protections from creditor action for up to 60 days.  The protections include pausing 

most enforcement action and contact from any department within the Council (which 

hold a debt).  A resident can only access Breathing Space once in a 12-month period 

2) Mental Health Crisis is only available to a resident who is receiving mental health crisis 

treatment.  There are some stronger protections, and it lasts as long as the residents 

mental health crisis treatment, plus 30 days (no matter how long the crisis treatment 

lasts).  There is no limit on how many times a resident who is receiving mental health 

crisis treatment can access Breathing Space. 

1.4 All sections within South Kesteven DC have been prepared for Breathing Space and the 

actions required to be taken.  The work is centrally managed by the Revenues and 

Benefits Team as a result of the formation of the Breathing Space Project Team.  The 

actions taken are: - 

1) Project team to receive and manage notifications from the Insolvency Service and 

issue a notification email to all sections with debtor information so checks can be 

undertaken 

2) All sections to undertake checks and complete a spreadsheet to verify this action 

record whether there is a debt or not.  If a there is a debt, the value is recorded. 

3) All sections to hold any contact with the debtor for 60 days.  All contact must be 

through the nominated debt advisor 

4) Debt advisor is contacted by the project team if the debt type or value is different to 

that notified 

5) Project team to continue to review processes, ensuring all guidance is followed.  The 

team will amend and adapt guidance as required, ensuring all sections are updated 

with new the new process. 

 

Financial Impact to South Kesteven District Council 

1.5 Since the regulations came in to force, South Kesteven DC have received 37 Breathing 

Space notifications, all of which have a Council debt, totalling £118.250.   

14



 

 
 

1.6 The level of individual debt ranges from £234.56 to £18,034.  There are just 6 debtors with 

one debt type, the remaining 31 have debt in multiple areas.  A breakdown of this debt is 

shown in the table below: 

Table 1: Breathing Space debt type: 

 Council Tax 
(arrears) 

Council Tax 
(current) 

Housing 
Benefit OP 

Rent arrears  

Value of debt £52,166 £6,555 £13,855 £45,674 

Number of 
debtors 

28 14 9 22 

 

1.7 With the exception of council tax (current), formal recovery of the above debts was 

suspended during 2020/21 and part of 2021/22 as a direct result of Covid.  The hold on 

recovery has been either through direct instruction from Government, or a Council 

decision:  

1) Council Tax (arrears) – these are debts relating to 2020/21 or earlier.  The council 

took the decision to suspend all formal recovery action relating to this debt until 

September 2020.  At this point, formal recovery resumed and during the period 

September 2020 through to March 2021, 9,730 reminders were issued, totalling 

£2,971,105.  Of those reminders that were not paid, or arrangements were not put in 

place, 1,295 summonses were issued, totalling £781,872. 

2) Council Tax (current) – these debts are relating to 2021/22.  All debts are currently 

being taken through the formal recovery route.  

3) Housing Benefit Overpayment – the Department for Work and Pensions provided 

instruction to all Councils to suspend all formal recovery action relating to this debt.  

Recovery resumed in May 2021. 

4) Rent arrears – in March 2020, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) issued notification that all notices, possession orders and 

evictions were to cease until further notice.  In September 2020 and July 2021, 

guidance was issued, introducing the lifting of suspension of possession cases and 

latterly, the resumption of evictions from 1 June 2021. 

1.8 The suspension and slow resumption of formal recovery has impacted on the collection of 

the above debts.  It has also impacted on the level of debt outstanding.  In some cases, 

little or no Council Tax / rent has been paid during 2020/21. 

1.9 As a result of the above, unusually large debt levels have been included within Breathing 

Space.  Breathing Space also stops any recovery that may be in place for a further 60-

days.  Unless a debt resolution is reached by the end of the 60-day period, recovery of the 

debt will be re-instated. 

 

Actions to be taken post 60-days 

1.10 The first 60-day period ended on 5 July 2021.  It is only at this point we will know what 

debt solution to debtor has entered in to.   

15



 

 
 

1.11 The recovery position of the debt prior to Breathing Space, may not be retained after this 

60-day period 

1.12 Of the 37 debtors in Breathing Space, there are 19 where their 60-day period has ended.  

1.13 As a result of the recommendations from the Rural and Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee meeting on 1 July 2021, the project team have reviewed the position 

of these debtors and have agreed the post 60-day action to be taken is dependant on the 

debt type.  The following actions have been implemented by the project team: 

5) Debt types identified and individual next step actions have been agreed.  The debts 

of the current 37 debtors all relate to Council Tax (current and arrears), Housing 

Benefit Overpayment and rent arrears.  As a result, the following actions as 

specifically relating to these debt types  

6) The debts have been divided into two specific areas: 

a. Debt type 1: Non enforcement debt – Housing Benefit Overpayment and 

Council Tax/Business Rates pre-summons stage 

b. Debt type 2: Enforcement debt – Rent arrears and Council Tax/Business 

Rates post-summons stage 

7) The debts have been split into two distinct categories.  Those debts that have not 

reached enforcement stage or additional costs relating to the recovery of the debt, 

and those debts that have reached enforcement stage with the consequences of non-

payment being significant i.e. possession of property, court eviction, instruction of 

recovery to an enforcement agent. 

8) The actions to be undertaken are different for each debt type: 

a. Debt type 1: 

i. The Breathing Space Project Team will contact the debt adviser and 

request the debt solution.  This is something the debt adviser is 

required to provide under the terms of the breathing space legislation.   

ii. If the debt solution is not provided within 5 working days, the project 

team will inform all SK Teams and recovery of the debt will continue. 

iii. The recovery of the debt will resume at the same stage prior to the 60-

day Breathing Space period. 

iv. A letter will be issued to the debtor to advise of the actions taken above. 

v. The intention of contact is to engage with the debtor and consider any 

support which has not been identified during the breathing space 

process.  The preferred outcome is to agree a sustainable payment 

arrangement with the debtor.  

 

b. Debt type 2: 

i. The Breathing Space Project Team will contact the debt adviser and 

request the debt solution.  This is something the debt adviser is 

required to provide under the terms of the breathing space legislation.   

16



 

 
 

ii. If the debt solution is not provided within 5 working days, the SK Team 

holding the debt will contact the individual debtor.  

iii. A letter will be issued to the debtor to advise we have been notified their 

60-day breathing space period has ended and contact within 5 working 

days is required to review the position of the debt. 

iv. The intention of contact is to engage with the debtor and consider any 

support which has not been identified during the breathing space 

process.  Officers will also ensure the debtor is fully aware of the 

position of the debt and the consequences of non-payment / 

engagement.  The preferred outcome is to agree a sustainable payment 

arrangement with the debtor.  

v. If the debtor does not respond, the recovery will resume at the same 

stage prior to the 60-day Breathing Space period. 

vi. The relevant actions will be undertaken to resume recovery of the debt 

and suitable correspondence will be issued to the debtor. 

 

The Breathing Space Project Team 

1.14 The project team are constantly reviewing the actions taken, the effectiveness of the 

support given to the debtor and the successful recovery of the outstanding debt. 

1.15 To ensure all of the above can be undertaken effectively, with immediate effect, one officer 

will be taking the lead.  They will undertake all actions from receipt of the initial breathing 

space notification through to the post 60-day notification to all SK Teams.  This will ensure 

consistency and the officer will undertake analysis of the impact of all stages. 

 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Members were presented with this scheme via a briefing report emailed to them on 29 

March 2021.   

2.2 The Corporate Management and Senior Management Team have been made aware of 

the regulations, with detailed process and guidance notes being issued to those sections 

identified where they are likely to hold a debt. 

2.3 A full report was presented to Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on 1 July 2021.  The report can be accessed here: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4161 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 There are no other options – the adherence to the actions as set out in this report and laid 

out in the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health 

Moratorium) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to continue, but amending and adapting processes as required (in 

line with legislation). 

17

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4161


 

 
 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 These are set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 To continue to action and respond to Breathing Space notifications in accordance with 

legislation and guidance. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The financial implications associated with this legislation, specifically collection rates and 

levels of debt write off have been addressed in the report.  However the impact will not be 

known for some time – as detailed in paragraph 1.7 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Moratorium) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 set out the regulations that are to be followed by all 

sections where a debt is held. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 The impact of the 60-day Breathing Space period, and resumption of collection of debt has 

been considered by the project team.  This is as a result of recommendations from the 

Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 1 July 2021 and 

are detailed in paragraph 1.7 to 1.15 of this report. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Council (along with the other preceptors for Council Tax and Business Rates), bears 

the risk of the cost of reduced or non-collection of any debt. 

10.2 Any changes to internal procedure and guidance will be undertaken in line with the 

regulations and communication of the changes will be efficient and effective.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 A full report was presented to Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on 1 July 2021.  The report can be accessed here: 

18



 

 
 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4161 

15 Appendices 

15.1 None 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/a 

Previously Considered by: Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

1 July 2021 

Final Decision date   N/a 

 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=4161


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
7 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

Finance Update Report: April – July 2021 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the Council’s forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end of July 2021. The 
report covers the following areas: 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 

Tel: 01476 406051 

Email: Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Gill Goddard, Senior Accountant 25 August 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 26 August 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

26 August 2021  

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to: 

- Review and note the forecast 2021/22 outturn position for the General Fund and 
HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of July 2021 and identify any 
variances that require further action or investigation. 

21

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

  

- Note the allocation criteria of the COVID recovery reserve, the use of which has 
been delegated to the Chief Executive and the S151 Officer in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources. 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be provided with regular finance reports 

that will be monitoring and assessing the current economic conditions for the Council. 

2 Revenue Budget 2021/22 – General Fund  

2.1 The budget set by Council on 1 March 2021 was £17.351m.  The approval of budget carry 

forwards by Cabinet have increased the General Fund net cost of service budget to 

£19.378m which is shown at Table 1 below.   

 

Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 

 

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  17,351 

May 2021 Leisure SK – Local Priorities Reserve 108 

June 2021 Regeneration Reserve 72 

July 2021 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards 1,847 

Total  19,378 

 

2.2 Table 2 shows a forecast deficit as at 31 July 2021 of £1.022m.  This is mainly due to the 

reduced procurement and process automation efficiencies not achievable during the 

continuation of current circumstances, reduced levels of income from service areas 

affected by restrictions (Arts centres, car parks) and removal of the salary vacancy factor 

forecasts (General Fund £438k, HRA £136k) at this time although it will be expected that 

these will be achieved during the remainder of the year and is managed as part of the 

vacant posts within service areas. This will be updated in subsequent reports. Appendix A 

provides a detailed breakdown of the General Fund summary.  

Table 2 – General Fund Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend  

Forecast 
Variance  

Forecast 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & Operations 7,667 8,055 8,608 553 6.9% 

Corporate 7,053 7,459 7,785 326 4.4% 

Growth & Culture 5,211 5,592 5,851 259 4.6% 

Housing & Property 179 1,031 1,063 32 3.1% 

HRA Recharge (2,759) (2,759) (2,759) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 17,351 19,378 20,548 1,170 6.0% 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(100) (100) (100) 0  

22



 
 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

296 296 296 0   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

186 186 186 0  

Drainage Rates 746 746 746 0  

Depreciation (4,586) (4,586) (4,586) 0   

Net Budget Requirement 13,893 15,920 17,090 1,170   

General Funding (14,348) (14,348) (14,348) 0   

Co-payment losses 
contribution* 

0 0 (167) (167)  

Total Funding  (14,348) (14,348) (14,515) (167)  

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

455 (1,572) (1,553) 19   

Net Budget Deficit 0 0 1,022 1,022   

*the figure shown is provisional and will depend on the actual net income losses declared in accordance with the 

Government scheme criteria. 

 

 Table 3 - General Fund Significant Income Streams 

 

Significant Income 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 

Current 
Budget 
£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£’000 

Forecast 
Variance     
£’000 

Forecast 
Variance           

% 

1 Green Waste Collection (1,329) (1,329) (1,368) (39) (2.9%) 

2 Development Management (1,187) (1,187) (1,187) 0 0.0% 

3 Stamford Car Parks (976) (976) (757) 219 22.4% 

4 Stamford Arts Centre (749) (749) (466) 283 37.8% 

5 Building Control (650) (650) (670) (20) (3.1%) 

6 Commercial Waste (497) (624) (519) 106 17.0% 

7 Grantham Car Parks (499) (499) (338) 161 32.3% 

8 Investment Property (330) (330) (330) 0 0.0% 

9 Guildhall Arts Centre (319) (319) (271) 49 15.2% 

10 Licensing (291) (291) (271) 20 6.9% 

11 Land Charges (233) (233) (233) 0 0% 

12 Stamford Market (162) (162) (152) 10 6.2% 

13 Grantham Market (46) (46) (46) 0 0.0% 

14 Miscellaneous Property (39) (39) (39) 0 0.0% 

15 Bourne Market (19) (19) (19) 0 0.0% 

 TOTAL (7,327) (7,455) (6,667) 788 10.6% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



 
 

 

 

 

Chart 1 – General Fund Significant Income Streams  

 

2.3 A final claim for Covid-19 support for co-payment losses scheme contribution is currently 

underway for the actual net income losses declared in accordance with the Government 

scheme criteria and is reflected in the overall financial forecast position incorporating the 

cessation claims of the available schemes including Furlough and Job Retention Scheme 

grants of £50k and Cultural Recovery Grant of £100k. Table 3 shows the total forecast 

variance for the key income areas and projects a significant variance of £788k which is 

reduced to £621k once the co-payment losses scheme claim is received. 

2.4 Appendix B provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each Directorate 

along with variance comments. 

2.5 At the previous Committee meeting members requested further information on key areas 

for expenditure that have been positively reduced during the hybrid ways of working. This 

is currently under review but the summary of spend against budget for the first four 

months of 2021/22 confirms that expenditure is below budgeted levels 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(1,600)(1,400)(1,200)(1,000)(800)(600)(400)(200)0

Green Waste Collection

Development Management

Stamford Car Parks

Building Control

Stamford Arts Centre

Commercial Waste

Grantham Car Parks

Investment Property

Guildhall Arts Centre

Licensing

Land Charges

Stamford Market

Grantham Market

Miscellaneous Property

Bourne Market

£'000

2021/22 Significant Income - Current Budget vs Forecast Outturn - as at 31 July 2021

Current Budget £'000 Forecast £’000

24



 
 

Table 4 – Reduced expenditure resulting from current hybrid working 

Budget Heading YTD Budget 

£ 

YTD Actuals 

£ 

YTD Variance 

£ 

Business Travel Claims 35,800 23,300 (12,500) 

Electricity 104,500 85,800 (18,700) 

Printing 43,700 27,000 (16,700) 

Postage 65,000 41,800 (23,200) 

Advertising 21,000 5,900 (15,100) 

Total 270,000 183,800 (86,200) 

 

  

3 General Fund Capital Programme 2021/22 

The budget set by Council on 1 March 2021 for the 2021/22 General Fund Capital 

programme is £4.085m. Table 5 shows the summary of movements: 

Table 5 – General Fund Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

GF Budget amendment £’000 

  4,085 

November 2020 Strategic Land acquisition 3,063 

March 2021 Decarbonisation Scheme 950 

May 2021 Additional Disabled Facilities Grant 2021/22 115 

July 2021 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards 436 

Total  8,649 

 

3.1 Table 6 summarises the General Fund Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 July 

2021.  

Table 6 – General Fund Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
 

% 

Commercial & Operations 2,362 6,712 6,430 (282) (4.2%) 

Corporate  50 50 50 0 0.0% 

Growth & Culture 1,673 1,363 663 (700) (51.3%) 

Housing & Property 0 524 529 5 1.0% 

Total Expenditure 4,085 8,649 7,672 (977) (11.3%) 

 

3.2 Details of the individual capital schemes and variances are included in each directorate 

are shown at Appendix C.   

 

 

25



 
 

4 General Fund Reserves 2021/22 

4.1 Appendix D details the General Fund forecast reserve movements for 2021/22, line 17 

and 18 detail that there are balances of £2.843m  and £1.249m on the budget stabilisation 

reserve and the covid recovery reserve respectively which may be required to fund the 

projected budget deficit of £1.022m detailed in Table 2. 

4.2 COVID Recovery Reserve 

The Committee is requested to note the criteria for the allocation of the COVID recovery 

reserve that has been delegated to the Chief Executive and the S151 Officer in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources.  

The reserve will be used in the following scenarios: 

− Where there is an identified reduction in income received compared to budgeted 
income arising from the impact of lockdown, social restrictions and an economic 
impact for the period following the easing of restrictions post 19 July 2021  

− Where there is an identified cost increase arising from the Council response to the 
lockdown and the recovery period.  This criterion will include expenditure relating to 
supplies and services, premise related or transport related costs. 

− Where there is an identified employee related cost (temporary or agency) arising 
from the need to allocate staff resource in order to respond or support the Council’s 
COVID recovery phase activities 

− Where, in specific circumstances, budgeted savings and efficiencies in the 2021/22 
budget framework cannot be delivered 

5 Revenue Budget 2021/22 – Housing Revenue Account 

The budget set by Council on 1 March 2021 for the 2021/22 HRA Revenue Budget is 

£5.435m. The budgeted surplus is fully utilised to fund future investment in stock growth 

and property maintenance. Table 7 shows the summary of movements: 

 

Table 7 – HRA Revenue Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

HRA Budget amendment £’000 

  (5,435) 

July 2021 2020/21 Budget carry forwards 1,720 

Total  (3,715) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 
 

 

5.1 Table 8 shows the HRA forecast outturn position for 2021/22 as at 31 July 2021. 

Table 8 – HRA Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

 
£’000 

 
2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

 
£’000 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget 

 
% 

Income (25,734) (25,734) (25,734) 0 0%  

Expenditure 18,018 19,738 20,055 317 1.6%  

Net Cost of HRA Services (7,716) (5,996) (5,679) 317 5.3%  

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,433 2,433 2,433 0  

Interest and Investment Income (152) (152) (152) 0  

Surplus for the year (5,435) (3,715) (3,398) 317  

 

5.2 Appendix E provides detail of the current HRA Revenue position along with variance 

comments. 

6 HRA Capital Programme 2021/22 

The budget set by Council on 1 March 2021 for the 2021/22 HRA Capital programme is 

£22.716m. Table 9 shows the summary of movements: 

Table 9 – HRA Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

GF Budget amendment £’000 

  22,716 

May 2021 Heating & Ventilation – Green Homes Grant 926 

July 2021 2020/21 Budget Carry Forwards 174 

Total  23,816 

 

Table 10 – HRA Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

 
 

£’000 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget 

 
% 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 4,340          5,266 5,266  0  0.0% 

ICT 720 720 80 (640) (88.9%) 

Repairs Vehicles 248 248 248 0 0.0% 

New Build Programme 11,165 11,165 4,240 (6,925) (62.0%) 

Refurbishment and Improvement 6,243 6,417    6,417 0 0.0% 

Total Expenditure 22,716     23,816 16,251 (7,565) (31.8%) 

 

6.1 The Committee requested an updated position with respect to the HRA New Build 

Programme and the Director of Housing & Property has provided the following:  

27



 
 

The Council has a clear intention that the Housing Revenue account delivers new build 

properties to support the “Housing that meets the needs of residents” theme of the 

Corporate Plan adopted in 2020.     Such a delivery programme must of course be 

balanced against the requirement to deliver capital investment in the existing HRA stock to 

meet statutory and regulatory requirements.   

However, the Council has 15 new units under construction and/or expected to complete in 

this financial year, including: 

− 7 at Meadow Close, Bourne; 5 at Trinity Road, Stamford (contract value of £1.8 
million); and  

− 3 at Riverside Walk, Grantham (contract value of £80K - with an anticipated 
completion date of the end of October 2021). 

 
In addition, an open space consultation is underway for 36 units at Larch Close, Grantham 

(anticipated delivery in 2022/23) and an application for planning approval is to be 

submitted in this financial year for 21 units at Swinegate, Grantham (likely start on site in 

2021/22 with delivery in 2022/23).    Pre-planning is completed in respect of 18 units at 

Wellington Way and the next stage would be public consultation, with delivery planned for 

2022/23.   There are a number of other sites at early stages of viability and design.   

Naturally, all new build properties meet building regulation standards and are built to a 

Lifetime Homes standard.  The use of timber frame construction at Meadow Close and 

Trinity Road allows better heating efficiency than traditional construction methods.   

In relation to the new Council Homes target, work will be needed to balance development 

aspirations against required capital investment in the Council’s existing housing stock as 

part of the review of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan from 2022/23.    This 

review is reliant on the quality of the information available regarding the condition of the 

Council’s existing housing stock – to that end, a full Stock Condition Survey commenced 

in July 2021, aiming to survey 100% of properties in this financial year.  The roll-out of the 

survey will allow some indications about the likely investment needed by late 

September/early October 2021 to assist with budget setting for 2022/23, with a full review 

of the HRA Business Plan to follow in 2022/23.      The Council will from 2022/23 survey 

20% of its housing stock, allowing an annual refresh of the Business Plan based on up-to-

date information.   

6.2 Details of the individual capital schemes and additional variances are included at 

Appendix F.   

7 HRA Reserves 2021/22 

7.1 Appendix G details the HRA forecast reserve movements for 2021/22, the reserve 

movements have been amended to reflect the reduced financing required to fund the 

capital programme forecast shown at Table 10. 

8 Cash Flow Modelling 

8.1 Cash flow management remains an important area of focus given the unpredictability in 

the Council’s income streams, particularly Council Tax and Business Rates, whilst the 

Council has legal obligations to continue to pay precepts and contractual payments.  Cash 

flow management remains a key focus and is reviewed on a daily basis to ensure that the 

Council can meet all its cash flow requirements.  The cash flow model has been updated 

28



 
 

and is shown at Appendix H.  A positive cash flow position is shown, and collection rates 

are performing strongly in the current climate.  The benchmarking of collection rates is 

undertaken on a monthly basis with Lincolnshire partners and there is a consistent profile 

with respect to overall performance. 

 

Table 11 – Collection Rates 

Target Information  Council Tax Business Rates Rents 
 

Annual collection 
rate 

Target 98.68% Target 99.16% 
 

Target 98.50% 

Target Collection 
rate to end of July 
2021 

46.44% 46.50% 32.45% 

Actual collection 
rate to end of July 
2021 

45.75% 42.62% 31.19% 

 

9 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

9.1 A budget monitoring report has been presented to the Finance, Economic Development 

and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 20 July. The Committee 

requested that regular reports be presented at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(OSC) meeting to ensure members were kept fully updated on the changing situation. 

10 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

10.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the Authority, as 

effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line 

with the budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring enables the 

early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

10.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2021/22 financial position for the Council 

and focuses on the position as at the end of July 2021. 

11 Financial Implications  

11.1 These are included in the report and supporting appendices. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

12 Legal and Governance Implications  

12.1 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect of the 

financial position of the Council expenditure during the year. This is particularly important 

during the current crisis. 

Legal Implications reviewed by:  Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer  

13 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

13.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

14 Risk and Mitigation 

29



 
 

14.1 A risk register is attached at Appendix I and shows that all known current risks are 

recognised and associated mitigating actions are in place. 

15 Community Safety Implications  

15.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

16 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

16.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

17 Background Papers 

17.1 Determination of Budget 2021/22 and indicative budgets to 23/24 – General Fund, 

Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29198/Budget%20Proposals%20for

%20202122%20and%20indicative%20budgets%20for%20202223%20and%20202324.pdf 

17.2 Provisional Outturn Position 2020/21 report 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30264/Outturn%20Position%20report

%20202021.pdf 

17.3 Finance Update Report– April to May 2021 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30469/Finance%20Update%20Repor

t%20April%20-%20May%202021.pdf 

 

18 Appendices 

18.1 Appendix A – 2021/22 General Fund Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

18.2 Appendix B – 2021/22 General Fund Significant Variance Analysis 

18.3 Appendix C – 2021/22 General Fund Capital Programme – Forecast Outturn 

18.4 Appendix D – 2021/22 General Fund Reserves Forecast Movements 

18.5 Appendix E – 2021/22 HRA Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

18.6 Appendix F – 2021/22 HRA Capital Programme – Forecast Outturn  

18.7 Appendix G – 2021/22 HRA Reserves Forecast Movements 

18.8 Appendix H – 2021/22 Cash Flow Forecast 

18.9 Appendix I – 2021/22 Finance Risk Register 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

30

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29198/Budget%20Proposals%20for%20202122%20and%20indicative%20budgets%20for%20202223%20and%20202324.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s29198/Budget%20Proposals%20for%20202122%20and%20indicative%20budgets%20for%20202223%20and%20202324.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30264/Outturn%20Position%20report%20202021.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30264/Outturn%20Position%20report%20202021.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30469/Finance%20Update%20Report%20April%20-%20May%202021.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30469/Finance%20Update%20Report%20April%20-%20May%202021.pdf


Appendix A 

2021/22 General Fund Revenue Summary  
 

Description 

2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend  

Forecast 
Variance  

Forecast 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Commercial & 
Operations 

7,667 8,055 8,608 553 6.9% 

Corporate 7,053 7,459 7,785 326 4.4% 

Growth & Culture 5,211 5,592 5,851 259 4.6% 

Housing & Property 179 1,031 1,063 32 3.1% 

HRA Recharge (2,759) (2,759) (2,759) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 17,351 19,378 20,548 1,170 6.0% 

Interest Payable and 
Receivable 

(100) (100) (100) 0  

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

296 296 296 0   

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

186 186 186 0  

Drainage Rates 746 746 746 0  

Depreciation (4,586) (4,586) (4,586) 0   

Net Budget 
Requirement 

13,893 15,920 17,090 1,170   

Funding and Resources:         

Council Tax (8,114) (8,114) (8,114) 0   

Government Grants (1,432) (1,432) (1,432) 0  

Retained Business 
Rates, S31 Grant, 
Pooling Gain & 
Renewable energy 

(3,808) (3,808) (3,808) 0   

New Homes Bonus (1,045) (1,045) (1,045) 0   

Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

51 51 51 0   

Co-payment losses 
contribution* 

0 0 (167) (167)  

Total Funding (14,348) (14,348) (14,515) (167)   

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

455 (1,572) (1,553) 19   

Net Budget Deficit 0 0 1,022 1,022   

*the figure shown is provisional and will depend on the actual net income losses declared in 

accordance with the Government scheme criteria. 

 

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
2021/22 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Commercial & Operations 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget  

2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Building Control 937,201 (833,885) 103,316 82,683 (20,633) (20.0%) 

Commercial & 
Operations  

250,765 0 250,765 274,700 23,935 9.5% 

Community 
Resilience 

106,459 0 106,459 108,350 1,891 1.8% 

Corporate Operations 4,203,118 (2,110,863) 2,092,255 2,499,320 407,065 19.5% 

Public Protection 1,711,226 (639,850) 1,071,376 1,138,550 67,174 6.3% 

Street Scene 6,521,010 (2,089,395) 4,431,615 4,504,145 72,530 1.8% 

Total 13,729,779 (5,673,993) 8,055,786 8,607,748 551,962 6.9% 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Corporate Operations 

Car parking – Current income levels compared to 2019/20 are 60% for Grantham and 80%  
for Stamford car parks, with occupancy rates still being impacted. Forecast income for August 
to March has been included at 60% for Grantham and 85% for Stamford, resulting in a total 
loss of income of £380k in year. This will partly be funded by the final co-losses income 
compensation scheme claim. 

407 

Public Protection 

A reduction in taxi licensing income of £20k is expected due to Covid-19.  Currently licence 
applications for hackney licences have reduced by 20% for drivers and 10% for vehicles as 
there has been less demand for this service during restrictions. 

67 

Street Scene 

Commercial Waste – The service continues to grow with additional annual sales value being 
achieved but not at the budgeted level. This is partially offset by the costs not incurred of 
servicing the budgeted level of new customers e.g. disposal costs 

Green Waste Collection – Additional income of (£39k) has been forecast to be received with 
29,996 households renewing their subscription for 2021/22 (29,641 in 2020/21) and 1,085 new 
households joining the service to the end of July. 95.6% of these households made their 
payment online with 71.5% paying by direct debit. 

73 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



Corporate 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget  

2021/22 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Centralised & 
Business 
Support 

488,800 (3,200) 485,600 425,400 (60,200) (12.4%) 

Communications 256,100 (4,300) 251,800 270,200 18,400 7.3% 

Corporate 1,576,862 (57,500) 1,519,362 1,705,300 185,938 12.2% 

Finance 1,298,950 (78,550) 1,220,400 1,229,300 8,900 0.7% 

Human 
Resources 

316,600 (5,800) 310,800 309,900 (900) (0.3%) 

ICT Services 1,967,390 (93,350) 1,874,040 1,886,940 12,900 0.7% 

Legal & 
Democratic 

1,916,350 (545,600) 1,370,750 1,357,350 (13,400) (1.0%) 

OD & Change 545,724 (33,000) 512,724 665,050 152,326 29.7% 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

20,240,674 (20,327,200) (86,526) (64,126) 22,400 (25.9%) 

TOTAL 28,607,450 (21,148,500) 7,458,950 7,785,314 326,364 4.4% 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Centralised & Business Support 

Continuing reductions in postage, printing and advertising requirements during this year has 
resulted in a forecast under spend of (£67k). New ways of working will be taken into 
consideration during the budget setting process for 2022/23. 

  (60) 
 
 
 
 

Corporate   

Procurement savings continue to be reviewed during the year although it is unlikely that 

additional budgeted savings of £188k are achievable in 2021/22.  

186 

OD & Change 

Process automation projects are currently being reviewed so is unlikely to achieve savings of 

£170k in 2021/22. 

152 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



Growth & Culture 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget  

2021/22 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts & Culture 2,877,720 (1,216,550) 1,661,170 1,900,820 239,650 14.4% 

Development & 
Policy 

1,545,348 (1,408,100) 137,248 172,648 35,400 25.8% 

Growth Management 551,871 (293,663) 258,208 242,463 (15,745) (6.1%) 

Invest SK 370,000 0 370,000 370,000 0 0.0% 

Leisure 3,315,600 (150,350) 3,165,250 3,165,550 300 0.0% 

Total 8,660,539 (3,068,663) 5,591,876 5,851,481 259,605 4.6% 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts Centres 

An additional successful Cultural Recovery grant application award of (£100k) will be utilised 
to partially support the phased reopening of the venues as they offer a reduced programme 
during 2021/22. The net cost for the year is forecast at £240k, including the above grant and 
furlough claims of £50k to the end of September when the scheme is due to cease. 

240 

 

 

 

 

Housing & Property 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget  

2021/22 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Assets & Estates 1,553,821 (1,150,150) 403,681 422,000 18,319 4.5% 

Housing 1,293,000 (665,251) 627,749 641,349 13,600 2.2% 

TOTAL 2,846,831 (1,815,401) 1,031,430 1,063,349 31,919 3.1% 

 
 
 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 
General Fund Capital Programme Summary 2021/22  

 

Capital Scheme 
2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Variance Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  

Commercial & Operations          

CCTV Camera replacement 40 40 12 (28) 
£12K Wyndham Park cameras - anticipated remainder 
be carried forward to next year to contribute towards 
moving control centre. 

Disabled Facilities Grant 860 975 747 (228) 
Recommendations continue to be received and forecast 
is in line with current work in progress and commitments. 
There have been 50 successful applications in 2021/22. 

Pool Vehicles 26 26 0 (26) Scheme no longer required in 2021/22 

Street Scene Vehicle 
Procurement 

228 228 228 0  

Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 0  

Vehicle Replacement Programme 696 696 696 0  

Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 122 122 0  

Commercial Vehicle 60 60 60 0  

Car Park Barriers 50 50 50 0  

Welham Car Park - Resurfacing 190 340 340 0  

Welham Car Park - Lift 0 50 50 0  

Market Stall Covers 28 28 28 0  

Wyndham Park Play Area 60 60 60 0  

Decarbonisation Scheme 0 950 950 0  

Depot 0 3,063 3,063 0  

Corporate          

Financial System Upgrade 50 50 50 0  

Growth & Culture      

Deepings LC - All Weather Pitch 
700 700 0 (700) Football Foundation grant application now postponed until 

2022/23.  Budget carry forward to be requested. 

Heritage Action Zone - Grantham 288 288 288 0  

37



GAC - Renovations 170 170 170 0  

GAC - Digital Boards 15 15 15 0  

Meres LC - Boiler 65 65 65 0  

Shop Front Scheme 125 125 125 0  

Housing & Property      

St Peter’s Hill Development 
(Cycle Centre) 

0 45 45 0 
 

SAC – Roof 0 81 81 0  

Invest & Regeneration 0 42 47 5  

Stamford Arts Centre - 
Regeneration 

240 286 286 0 
 

Cattle Market Stamford Extension 70 70 70 0  

Total 4,085 8,649 7,672 (977)  

 

38



Appendix D 

2021/22 Reserves – General Fund 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance as 

at 31 
March 
2021 
£’000 

Forecast 
movement 

£’000 

Forecast 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2022 
£’000 

  Discretionary Reserves       

1 Climate Change 40 (20) 20 

2 Commercial 500 (250) 250 

3 Training and Development 15 0 15 

4 Street Scene 222 (29) 193 

5 ICT investment 376 (152) 224 

6 Economic Development & Growth 32 (32) 0 

7 Local Priorities Reserve 6,599 (2,659) 3,940 

8 Invest to Save 1,016 (578) 439 

9 Housing Delivery 1,468 0 1,468 

10 Property Maintenance 500 (168) 332 

11 Regeneration 1,293 (493) 800 

12 Food Waste 50 (50) 0 

    12,111 (4,431) 7,680 

  Governance Reserves       

13 Insurance Reserve 272 0 272 

14 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 341 (45) 296 

16 Budget Stabilisation 2,843 1,123 3,966 

17 Covid Recovery 1,249 0 1,249 

18 Section 31 Grant Reserve 8,828 (8,328) 500 

19 Building Control 58 (3) 55 

20 Football 3G Pitch 100 25 125 

21 Special Expense Area Reserve 276 23 299 

   13,967 (7,205) 6,762 

         

22 Total General Revenue Reserves 26,078 (11,586) 14,492 

         

23 Government Grants Received 1,076 (255) 821 

         

24  Working Balance 2,010 (126) 1,884 

        

25  Total Revenue Reserves 29,164 (11,967) 17,197 

         

 Capital Reserve       

26 LAMS Reserve 18  0 18 

27 General Fund Capital Reserve 296 (122) 174 

28 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 2,196 (2,128) 68 

         

29 Total Capital Reserves 2,510 (2,250) 260 

         

30 Total General Fund Reserves 31,674 (14,217) 17,457 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E 

 
Housing Revenue Account Summary 2021/22  

 

Description 
2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (24,627) (24,627) (24,627) 0 

Non-Dwelling Rents (341) (341) (341) 0 

Charges for Services and 
Facilities 

(700) (700) (700) 0 

Other Income (66) (66) (66) 0 

Total Income (25,734) (25,734) (25,734) 0 

          

Expenditure         

Repairs and Maintenance 7,508   9,089   9,178   89  

Supervision and 
Management - General 

1,907   1,914   2,124  210  

Supervision and 
Management - Special 

1,385   1,517   1,535  18  

Depreciation and 
Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

3,717   3,717   3,717   0    

Debt Management 
Expenses 

 35   35   35   0   

Provision for bad debts  383   383   383   0    

Other Expenditure 
(Pension Deficit) 

 324   324   324   0  

Housing Development 0    0   0  0  

Support recharge from 
General Fund 

 2,759   2,759   2,759   0    

 Total Expenditure  18,018   19,738   20,055  317  
     

Net Cost of HRA 
Services 

(7,716) (5,996) (5,679) 317  

Interest Payable and 
Similar Charges 

 2,433   2,433   2,433  0  

Interest and Investment 
Income 

(152) (152) (152)  0  

     

Surplus for the year (5,435) (3,715) (3,398) 317  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

 

 

 

 

Explanation of significant variances £’000 

Supervision & Management – General: 

Agency costs have been incurred during the year whilst permanent 
recruitment has been undertaken for a number of roles. 

 

137 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

42



 

Appendix F 
 

HRA Capital Programme Summary 2021/22  

 

Capital Scheme 
2021/22 
Original 
Budget 

2021/22 
Current 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Variance Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  

Heating and Ventilation 4,340 5,266 5,266 0  

CCTV - HRA 30 30 30 0  

Housing System 

Enhancements 
690 690 50 (640) 

Pending the appointment of new assistant director when we 

will test the market.  Anticipate project  to be delivered in 

2022/23 

Repairs Vehicles 248 248 248 0  

Tunstall System Upgrade 125 250 250 0  

Communal Rooms 130 130 130 0  

Replacement Door 

Programme 
1,638 1,638 1,638 0  

Housing Growth 10,725 10,725 3,800 (6,925) See note 6.1 of the report 

Kitchens & Bathrooms 1,745 1,745 1,745 0  

Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,200 0  

Electrical Rewires 490 539 539 0  

Passenger Lifts 375 375 375 0  

Fencing 340 340 340 0  

43



 
 

Property Acquisition 440 440 440 0  

Door Entry System 200 200 200 0  

Total 22,716 23,816 16,251 (7,565)  

 
 

44



Appendix G 

2021/22 Reserves – Housing Revenue Account 

  

Description 

Actual 
Balance    

as at          
31 March 

2021 
£’000 

Forecast 
movement 

£’000 

Forecast 
Balance 

as at 
31 March 

2022 
£’000 

  Revenue Reserves       

1 HRA Improvement 2,006 (50) 1,956 

2 Property Development 13,522 (450) 13,072 

3 Residents Involvement 30 0 30 

4 Working Balance 3,771 (556) 3,215 

    19,329 (1,056) 18,273 

  Capital Reserves    

5 HRA Capital Receipts 8,056 (1,592) 6,464 

6 Major Repairs Reserve 17,900 (5,433) 12,467 

   25,956 (7,025) 18,931 

      

7 Total HRA Reserves 45,285 (8,081) 37,204 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX H

2021/22 Cashflow Statement (£)

Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

April April May May June June July July August September October November December January February March Total

Income

Council Tax 8,650,000 8,727,326 8,650,000 8,646,328 8,650,000 8,568,494 8,070,049 8,282,378 7,672,230 8,039,987 7,956,101 7,950,828 7,660,647 7,837,520 7,914,205 3,181,135 92,224,850

Business Rates 3,895,000 3,984,223 2,915,000 2,864,340 2,750,000 2,875,907 2,918,220 3,057,549 2,807,613 3,107,818 3,130,814 3,070,560 3,259,584 2,850,989 2,790,100 3,030,338 36,690,506

Rent 1,367,000 1,366,270 1,450,000 1,453,823 1,450,000 1,482,335 1,420,998 1,479,368 1,375,296 1,359,499 1,350,814 1,370,256 1,278,116 1,327,506 1,384,106 1,459,406 16,628,426

Invoices raised to customers 200,000 194,841 350,000 572,281 400,000 458,775 397,612 1,378,717 408,756 1,092,372 371,952 525,627 380,119 389,694 331,324 514,831 5,638,185

Housing Benefit Overpayments 15,000 13,619 25,000 29,143 20,000 19,566 17,061 25,221 16,923 18,920 75,915 18,598 18,019 18,019 22,585 26,013 294,381

Reimbursement of VAT 350,000 231,533 350,000 325,796 350,000 311,964 615,894 265,894 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 4,285,187

New Homes Bonus 261,344 261,344 0 0 0 0 261,344 261,343 0 0 261,344 0 0 261,344 0 0 1,045,376

Section 31 grant 0 3,600,000 3,945,775 1,800,000 1,897,459 1,300,000 1,305,687 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,143,234

Subsidy 1,500,000 1,454,636 2,450,000 2,350,289 1,500,000 1,454,636 1,500,000 1,454,636 0 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 17,259,561

COVID19 grant (business restart grant) 0 8,230,936 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,230,936

Other Grants 0 929,349 290,000 737,308 975,298 2,523,284 0 314,527 0 0 489,209 0 0 489,209 0 0 5,168,359

16,238,344 25,394,078 20,080,000 20,925,084 17,895,298 19,592,421 16,501,178 17,825,321 12,630,818 15,468,596 15,486,149 14,785,869 14,446,485 15,024,280 14,292,321 10,061,722 194,609,000

Expenditure

LCC & PCC Precepts, Business Rates Pooling Payments 8,198,981 8,198,981 10,579,429 10,579,429 1,190,224 1,190,224 9,389,205 9,389,205 9,256,958 9,256,958 9,256,958 9,256,958 9,256,958 9,256,958 1,057,977 7,269,201 93,226,762

Government Bus. Rates Pooling Payments 0 0 900,000 869,038 900,000 869,036 1,069,037 869,036 772,477 772,478 972,477 772,477 772,478 972,477 772,478 772,476 9,386,929

Salaries 1,050,000 985,789 1,050,000 992,469 1,050,000 1,123,644 1,050,000 1,028,121 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 12,551,902

Benefit payments 750,000 763,945 750,000 766,884 750,000 1,487,710 766,884 754,554 766,884 766,884 766,884 766,884 766,884 766,884 766,884 766,884 9,920,493

Public Works Loan Board Loan Repayments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000,000 0.00 0 0 0 0 3,000,000 6,000,000

Rejected Direct Debits 0 59,560 0 55,394 0 64,717 0 64,189 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 179,670

Creditors 4,000,000 4,036,890 3,000,000 2,970,270 3,500,000 4,166,863 3,447,667 3,010,699 4,008,000 5,010,000 4,008,000 4,008,000 5,010,000 4,008,000 4,008,000 5,010,000 49,691,690

Business Rates/Council Tax refunds 100,000 90,945 200,000 195,708 150,000 111,939 117,319 183,344 140,000 175,000 140,000 175,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 175,000 1,740,910

14,098,981 14,136,109 16,479,429 16,429,191 7,540,224 9,014,133 15,840,112 15,299,147 15,994,318 20,031,319 16,194,318 16,029,318 16,996,319 16,194,318 7,795,339 18,043,560 182,698,356

Net Cashflow -2,139,363 -11,257,968 -3,600,571 -4,495,893 -10,355,074 -10,578,287 -661,066 -2,526,173 3,363,501 4,562,724 708,169 1,243,449 2,549,835 1,170,038 -6,496,982 7,981,838 -11,910,644

9,118,605 895,322 223,213 1,865,107

NOTES

April

COVID business grant income of £8.2m was received

May

June

Future High Street Grant of £1.116m was received

July

Disabled Facilities Grant funding allocation from Lincolnshire Council Council for £975k was received

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix I 

Finance Risk Register 

 
 

     
 

 

Risk 
ref 

Risk description 
Existing 
controls/plans/mitigations 

Action to be taken to enhance or 
expand existing controls 

Likelihood Impact Rating 
Priority 

L/M/H/VH 
Risk 

category 

1 

Income 
recovery 
forecasting 
amounts differ 
from actuals   

Monthly modelling of actual 
income received compared 
with forecasts assumptions 

Existing controls are appropriate and 
will continue to be reviewed  
Income Compensation scheme in 
place for the period 1 April – 30 June 
2021  

2 3 6 High Financial 

2 

Forecast 
expenditure 
fluctuations over 
the coming 
months   

Monthly budget monitoring 
is in place across all service 
areas to review expenditure 
forecasts and to identify 
expenditure savings  

Monthly monitoring is in place, so no 
further controls are required at this 
time  2 4 8 High Financial 

3 

No further 
tranches of 
Government 
financial support 
are received   

There are no existing 
controls in place as this risk 
is external to the 
organisation  

The Government has allocated 
various sources of funding during 
2020/21 but no further allocations 
are expected for 2021/22 

3 3 9 High Financial 

4 

The Council has 
a deficit position 
for 2021/22 

It was identified that a 
deficit was a risk due to 
continued fluctuations to 
both expenditure and 
income levels 

The Council has put in place a 
COVID recovery reserve which will 
be used to offset budget deficits.  
The Council also has a budget 
stabilisation reserve if required 

3 3 9 High Financial 

 

49



 

50



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

7 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

         
  

 

Review of Special Expense Areas 

This report reviews the costs that are currently being charged to the Special Expense Areas and 
examines the guiding principles that are adhered to when allocating costs to the Special Expense 
Areas. 

 

Report Author 

Gill Goddard, Senior Accountant  

Tel: 01476 406080 

Email: g.goddard@southkesteven.gov.uk   

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 23 August 2021 

Approved by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  23 August 2021  

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

24 August 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the current services being charged to each 
respective Special Expense Area (SEAs) and to consider whether transferring the 
responsibility to the respective local parish or town council is appropriate. 

 

51

Agenda Item 8

mailto:g.goddard@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A provision of the Local Government Act 1992 (section 34 and 35) allows Councils to 

classify by resolution, certain expenditure and income as “special” rather than general, 

indicating that the related tax burden is chargeable against a part rather than the whole of 

the Council’s area. 

1.2 A Special Expense Area (SEA) has a separate tax levy similar to a parish/town council 

precept. It relates to expenses that in other locations within the district are picked up by 

the parish/town council e.g. playing fields, cemeteries. 

1.3 SEA’s are created to avoid “double taxation” where a resident of South Kesteven would 

pay for facilities in their own parish (via their parish precept) and also pay towards another 

facility in another parish through the District Council precept. 

1.4 The District currently has four special expense areas following the cessation of the 

Deepings SEA with effect from 1 April 2021: 

(a) Grantham SEA 

(b) Stamford SEA 

(c) Bourne SEA 

(d) Langtoft SEA 

1.5 At each annual budget setting, the costs directly associated with each of the parish areas 

defined above are charged accordingly.  The overall budget costs are then allocated to 

each of the hereditaments contained in each parish (as defined by the parish boundary) 

and charged depending upon their Council Tax banding. 

1.6 As stated above the budgets that are charged to each parish are allocated based on the 

guiding principles of whether the cost/function/activity would ordinarily be undertaken by a 

parish/town council in that area.  In the case of Grantham, the existence of the SEA is 

more obvious as there is no Town Council and therefore the District Council delivers and 

funds a number of activities in that area.   

1.7 The overriding principle, as set out in the prevailing legislation, is that functions that are 

carried out by the District Council only in part of its area that would otherwise be carried 

out by the parish and town council are charged to that local area.  It should be noted that 

the SEA charge forms part of the overall Band D increase calculation so the increases in 

each respective SEA contribute towards the overall SKDC Band D charge. 

1.8 Should there be a desire to reduce or remove the special expense areas, then the Council 

has the option of either transferring the incurred costs to the General Fund or engaging 

with the local parish to transfer the responsibility to them.      

2 In order to be able to consider whether the costs being to each SEA should continue to be 

charged, it is helpful to specify the charges currently allocated.  Each SEA is set out 

below:  

Grantham SEA 

  The current services funded by each respective SEA are as follows: 

• Parks and Playing Fields (Wyndham Park, Dysart Park, Queen Elizabeth Park, 
Harrowby Lane, Arnoldfield Park) 

52



 

 
 

• Grass Verge Cutting 

• Grantham Cemetery 

• Grantham Football Stadium contribution  

• Christmas Illuminations and Fun Day 

• Remembrance Sunday  

 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Grantham SEA budget £480,490 £502,568 £520,187 £538,411 

Band D Council Tax 
Charge 

£44.73 £45.81 £46.80 £48.24 

Reserve level  £156,009 £106,788 £72,426 £90,000 

 

Bourne  SEA  

The SEA funds the cost of recreation ground and playing field (Bourne Recreation Ground 

and Dyke Playing Field): 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Bourne SEA budget £31,223 £32,083 £32,148 £32,270 

Band D Council Tax 
Charge 

£5.76 £5.76 £5.58 £5.58 

Reserve level  £15,571 £16,783 £24,666 £32,000 

 

Stamford SEA 

The SEA funds the cost of Empingham Road and Uffington Road playing fields: 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Stamford SEA budget £80,129 £81,457 £78,979 £79,457 

Band D Council Tax 
Charge 

£11.43 £11.43 £10.89 £10.89 

Reserve level  £83,468 £86,771 £110,492 £129,000 

 

Langtoft SEA 

The SEA funds the cost of the playing field: 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Langtoft SEA budget £4,858 £4,923 £4,713 £4,700 

Band D Council Tax 
Charge 

£6.48 £6.48 £6.21 £6.21 

Reserve level  £3,990 £3,475 £3,188 £2,000 

 

It is possible to transfer the asset/function and therefore responsibility of each of the SEA 

activities (with the exception of Grantham as it has no Town Council) to the respective 

town or parish council thus removing the cost from the Council budgets.  This would have 

the effect of transferring the cost to the local precept charge rather as part of the overall 

SKDC Band charge.  The local precept charge is not currently restricted by any 

referendum limit unlike the SKDC charge which is restricted by a maximum annual 

increase of £5 (Band D).  The respective central support cost that is currently charged to 

53



 

 
 

each SEA would remain as part of the overall Council cost and could not be transferred.  

Any transfer of asset responsibility would need to be mutually agreed by both parties and 

the necessary lease or freehold transfer arrangements would need to be put in place.  

Both Stamford Town Council and Bourne Town Council have expressed an interest in 

opening discussions over the future responsibility of the assets that are currently charged 

to their respective SEA and preliminary discussions have been opened.  Moreover, the 

Council could consider the transfer of other community based assets to the respective 

Town Council that are not currently charged to the respective SEA as part of a broader 

transfer proposal.  Any changes to the current charging responsibilities would need to be 

approved by Council as part of setting the budgets and Council tax for the financial year.  

 The Committee is asked to consider the principle of transferring responsibility from the 

Council to the respective town/parish council with a view to removing the SEA’s from the 

Council’s budgets from 2022/23 onwards. 

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

3.1 The Committee is invited to comment on the proposals set out in the report. 

4 Available Options Considered 

4.1 The options are set out in the report. 

5 Preferred Option 

6 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

6.1 The reasons for the preferred option are set out in the report. 

7 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

8 Financial Implications  

8.1 These are set out in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

9 Legal and Governance Implications  

9.1 At this time there are no legal or governance implications arising from the report.  Should 

decisions be taken to transfer any assets then the appropriate legal arrangements will 

need to be agreed. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

10 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

10.1 None 

11 Risk and Mitigation 

11.1 None. 

12 Community Safety Implications  

12.1 None 

13 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

54



 

 
 

13.1 None 

14 Other Implications (where significant)  

14.1 None 

15 Background Papers 

15.1 None 

16 Appendices 

16.1 N/A 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date    

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

7 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten, 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance  

         
  

 

Progress on the New Customer Feedback Process   

This report provides the Committee an update on a new customer feedback process.  

 

Report Author 

Debbie Roberts, Interim Organisational Development and Change Manager  

 
01476 406080 

 debbie.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 26 August 2021  

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 27 August 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance  

27 August 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update regarding a new customer feedback process and software 
system. 

2. Discusses and endorses the new draft customer feedback policy and provides any 
comments prior to making a recommendation to Cabinet that the new policy is 
adopted. 

3. Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Governance to continue exploring costs a new software system for 
complaints and provide regular updates on progress to the Committee.  

57

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Council has operated a Customer Feedback Process, Compliments, Comments and 

Complaints since 2013. A report to start the project to review this was brought to the 

previous meeting which provided details of the stages of a compliment, complaint or 

comment and it was agreed a short update would be provided at this meeting.  

1.2 An internal officer project team has been formed and is meeting regularly to progress the 

new process and, if required, any new software to support implementation and appropriate 

governance.  

1.3 Appendix 1 to the report is an updated Project Initiation Document for noting.  

1.4 Appendix 2 is the new draft Customer Feedback Process, Compliments, Complaints and 

Comments 2021 for the Committees consideration. This new process outlines how the 

Council will respond to compliments, complaints and comments which is following a two 

stage process which is aligned to the Housing Feedback Process which was adopted in 

July 2021 by Cabinet.  

1.5 New Draft Customer Feedback Process  

1.6 Under the new process customer can still get in touch via the same routes (telephone, 

email, letter, completion of the feedback form online) and the following timelines are:  

1.7 Compliments - We will ensure that the positive feedback is shared with the service and if 

appropriate the individual involved and acknowledge your compliment with a response 

within 3 working days.  

1.8 Comments - We can’t guarantee that we can always make the suggested or requested 

changes but we will reply in full within 15 working days to explain why a decision or 

process exists in its current form, what we might do differently or why we won’t be able to 

change things in the future.  

1.9 Complaints Process - Appendix 1 - Complaint’s procedure workflow. The Council 

operate a two stage complaints process, after which the complaint is closed. The 

complainant can then escalate the complaint to the Ombudsman for independent review. 

1.10 Stage 1 - The Council will acknowledge a formal complaint within 3 working days and will 

tell you the name of the Officer who will be processing the complaint. This is likely to be a 

service manager for the service area the complaint relates to. You will be provided with a 

full response within 10 working days or an explanation stating why the response will not be 

ready and when the response can be expected.   

1.11 When the response at stage 1 has been sent the complaint will be classified as pending 

for 30 days, if you have not requested the complaint to be reviewed at stage 2 within the 

30 days the complaint will be closed.  

1.12 Request escalation to stage 2 - If you are not satisfied with the Stage 1 response, you 

may ask for the response to be reviewed at Stage 2.  Your request should include details 

of: 

1. why you feel the response has not addressed your complaint  

2. what outcome you would want from the stage 2 review 

3. The Council will acknowledge your request for stage 2 within 3 working 

days. 

58



 

 
 

1.13 Stage 2 - Within 30 days of receiving your stage 1 response, you requested a review of 

your complaint at stage 2. 

1.14 Stage 2 complaints are assigned to a senior manager who is not responsible for the 

service area the complaint relates to. The senior manager will review the previous 

decision and decide if it was fair and reasonable. The senior manager may contact you for 

further information.  

1.15 The stage 2 response will explain the outcome of the review and provide details of any 

actions that may be agreed. You will receive a response within 20 working days or an 

explanation stating why the response will not be ready and when the response can be 

expected but no more than a further 10 working days.    

1.16 Stage 2 is the final stage in our complaints process and the response will explain the 

options if you are still not satisfied with the Councils response. 

1.17 Local Government Ombudsman - If you are still dissatisfied with the way your complaint 

has been processed, you have the right to ask the Local Government Ombudsman, an 

independent body, to investigate allegations of maladministration causing an injustice to 

anybody who has complained.    

1.18 This means there has been a fault in the way the Council has or has not done something 

and it has created difficulties for you personally. The Ombudsman does not usually 

criticise the merits of a decision which has been properly taken simply because someone 

may disagree with it. They will however look at the way the decision was made.    

1.19 The Ombudsman will not usually consider a complaint until the Council has had a chance 

to resolve the matter through its own procedure.   

1.20 Housing and feedback review 

1.21 The Housing service have been required to design and implement a Housing specific 

complaints process. The Housing Ombudsman complaint code was issued to Council’s 

last year. The code details how complaints should be handled and the structure of the 

complaints process, this includes the timeframes and the stages to follow. This new 

Housing policy has been approved by Cabinet.  

1.22 Software Update  

1.23 The existing software used to log compliments, complaints and comments feedback is 

being reviewed and there are a number of alternative software providers that are being 

explored that the Council currently use for other processes.  

1.24 Initial quotes that have been obtained indicate that the new software could be purchased 

from existing budgets and therefore no additional budget is required. Two costs received 

to date are between £8,000- £10,000.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The indicative timeline by the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee is:  

- 20 July 2021: Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee – Approved for the project commencing to Project Initiation 

stage  

59



 

 
 

- July - Sept 2021 an internal project led by the Deputy Chief Executive as Project 

Sponsor will meet to progress the complaints procedures.  

- 7 Sept 2021 - Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee to review the draft customer feedback process and provide 

comments and recommend the new policy is adopted by Cabinet in October 2021. 

Endorse any additional software purchased.  

- Oct 2021 – Cabinet to receive recommendation from Finance, Economic 

Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

- 23 November 2021: Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – review progress on implementation.  

3 Financial Implications  

The Council currently manages it’s complaints using a third party software provider. The 

licence to use this software is included in a corporate licence that is an annual cost.  Any 

variations to this current arrangement may incur additional software licence costs if there 

is any proposal to introduce a new complaint monitoring software. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Section 151 Officer 

 

4 Legal and Governance Implications 

4.1 As there are proposed changes to legislation and the introduction of a new housing 

Complaint Handling Code, it is now a requirement (and not best practice), to handle 

housing complaints and feedback in accordance with the Code.   

4.2 From a governance point of view, although there has been no change in legislation 

regarding how the Council deals with corporate customer feedback, for best practice, it 

would be appropriate that corporate customer complaints are dealt with in the same 

response timeframes and the current three stages of the complaints procedure reduced to 

two stages, in line with the housing complaints procedure.  

    Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic 

Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 The Council will support customers in submitting feedback, where requested, to ensure no 

one is unable to provide feedback (e.g. due to language or disability issues). We will 

monitor all feedback to ensure our approach is fair and accessible to all customers.  An 

Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the project initiation.  

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 The risks were identified in the previous report to the Committee. Mitigation measures 

include the implementation of a new system, full training for all officers to fully understand 

the process and ownership from Directorates.   

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

60



 

 
 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

8.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. More detailed information on carbon impact 

of individual projects or activities are outlined within the relevant project documentation or 

service plans. 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Agenda and background reports on Housing Feedback and Policy Changes 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=4115&Ver=4 

9.2 Agenda and action notes from the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 29th June 2021.  

9.3 Report to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 20 July 2021 and action notes.  

10 Appendices 

10.1 Appendix 1 – Amended Project Initiation Document  

10.2 Appendix 2 – New Draft Customer Feedback Process 2021    

Report Timeline: Previously Considered by: Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

20 July 2021 

Final Decision date   23 November 2021 

 

61

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=4115&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Project Initiation Document  

New Customer Feedback Process   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Alan Robinson - Deputy Chief Executive  

South Kesteven District Council 
 

Author:  Stacy Carter – Data Protection Support Officer 
South Kesteven District Council  
 

Version:  V2.0 
 

Date:  24 Aug 2021 
 

  
 

 

  

63



South Kesteven District Council – Complaints Process Project Initiation Document 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Contents 

 

Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution .................................................................... 2 

Version Control ................................................................................................................. 2 

Document Approval ........................................................................................................... 2 

Document Distribution ....................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 3 

Project Details ................................................................................................................... 3 

Next Steps ........................................................................................................................ 4 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution 

Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

1.0 07 July 2021 Document creation 

   

   

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

Cllr Linda Wootten   7th July 2021  

Alan Robinson  7th July 2021  

FEDSC  OSC Committee  7th July 2021  

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

FEDCS  Email/online   Via democracy  

 

  

64



South Kesteven District Council – Complaints Process Project Initiation Document 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Introduction 

This document outlines the initiation of a project to implement a new complaints procedure designed to align 

the corporate complaints procedure and the housing complaints procedure. The project will also review SKDC 

requirements for complaints reporting, and the requirements for and of a system to process feedback.  

Project Details 

 

Project Corporate Complaints  

Background 

SKDC corporate complaints process does not run efficiently. Many complaints are 

not responded to within the timeframes required. Complaint escalation through 

the stages is inconsistent and complaint reporting does not provide enough data to 

improve service delivery. Resource is required to review, design, implement and 

improve the complaints process. 

Project Objectives 

Ensure SKDC have a corporate complaints process that works efficiently. That staff 

are trained and can take responsibility for the process. That the Council meet the 

timeframes set and that this becomes a focus for CMT and Members when 

reviewing KPI’s 

Activities / Scope 

- Review the feedback process and draft new policy  

- Look at the system used to process the complaints.  

- Design and implement an internal process for stage escalation and assignment 

- Identify staff training requirements 

- Identify reporting requirements and implement changes to complaints reporting   

Deliverables 

- Adoption of new customer feedback process for compliments, complaints and 

comments 

- New feedback software system if required  

- Continual staff and Members training program to make aware of new process 

and timelines for responding 

- Complaint reporting and KPIs  

- Best practice for the Council  

- Better service to the customer/residents  

Timing 
Project to be fully delivered by the end of 2021. 

Training of staff and Members to be ongoing. 

Exclusions 

The finance for the project to be explored, if budget cannot be found from existing 

then approval from Council will be required.  

65



South Kesteven District Council – Complaints Process Project Initiation Document 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Dependencies & 

Assumptions 

Dependencies: 

- Engagement from heads of service to lead complaints in their Directorates  

- Project Sponsor to report to FEDCS progress to ensure process  

Assumptions: 

-  New software system to be purchased and implemented  

- Training to all staff and Members on complaints, new timeframes and 

expectations around accountability  

- Directorates will lead on their own areas for complaints and take responsibility  

- Reporting on these regularly at appropriate OSCs  

 

Resources 

Project team to be:  

Linda Wootten – Project Sponsor 

Alan Robinson – Deputy Chief Executive  

Debbie Roberts and Ben Russell - OD&C project lead and performance  

Stacy Carter and Graham Watts– Democratic and Legal  

Gary Andrews – IT 

Nicola Hughes (or delegated staff member) - Customer Services  

Sarah McQueen - Housing  

Estimated Cost The cost is to be investigated further. 

 

Next Steps 

 

Regular updates will be taken to FEDCS, if there is any budget requirement this may need Council approval.  

It is the ambition that a new system will be implemented in autumn 2021 with a full schedule of training rolled 

out in winter 2021 and be part of the welcome journey with new starters so that this is embedded into the 

organisation.  

66



 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK PROCESS 

Compliments, Comments & Complaints 

July 2021 
 

67



 

   2  

   1  

Customer Feedback Procedure Introduction 

South Kesteven District Council are committed to delivering an excellent quality of service 

and want to hear what you think of us, whether you were really pleased with your 

experience, felt we could have done better or simply want to share your thoughts. We want 

to learn from what our customers have to say and improve service delivery.     

  

Customer feedback means  

• Comments - general feedback on the service provided 

• Compliments - satisfaction with the service provided 

• Complaints - dissatisfaction with the service provided 

 

We aim to:  

• Enable our customers to give us their feedback  

• Ensure all feedback is responded to fully and efficiently within reasonable timescales  

Learn important lessons from all feedback given and share it with the organisation 

  

Why do we want your feedback?  

All colleagues within South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) work in line with the Values 

and Behaviours of the organisation and when it comes to customer feedback, there is no 

exception. You feedback is vital to the Council for improving service delivery. 

  

“We listen and respond to our customers” 

 

• We know who our customers are both external and internal  

• We listen to our customers and make decisions based on their needs  

• We put ourselves in our customers shoes  

• We do not pass the buck when something goes wrong  

• We are honest when we get things wrong and learn from the feedback given  

  

Accessibility  

If you require assistance in completing the feedback form, please contact us via phone or 

call into your nearest customer service centre where SKDC staff will be happy to help you.  

                                                                                                   

To ensure everyone has access to our information it is available in a range of different 

formats: British Sign Language, Braille. Interpreter service and we can also offer officer 

assistant for those who may find it difficult to read or write.  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



 

   3  

 

What type of feedback can you give?  

 
                

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  
  
  Tell us what you liked…… 

  
  This could be about a 

person, a service, a single 

event or a chain of 

circumstances that made 

your experience a positive 

one. 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

Definition of compliment – noun 

✓ A polite expression of praise of 

admiration 

✓ An act or circumstance that implies 

praise or respect 

      

    
  

  

      

  

  
  

  

  

  

Definition of comment – noun 

✓ A verbal or written remark 

expressing an opinion or 

reaction 

Definition of complaint – noun 

✓ A statement that something is 

unsatisfactory or unacceptable 

About a standard of service, 

policy or decision made by 

SKDC or a service.  

Maybe you have a 

suggestion about something 

we could do differently.  

 

Tell us what you thought…… 

Tell us what you didn’t like…… 

Perhaps about a standard of 

service, a failure to meet your 

expectations, an action or a lack 

of action or because you found it 

difficult to access our services, or 

Officer conduct. Anything which 

you feel is unacceptable.  

69



 

   4  

  

Confidentiality 

All information will be collected and stored and managed in accordance with the General 

Data Protection Regulations and Data Protection Act 2018. 

 

Details of a complaint will only be provided to employees of SKDC and appropriate 

representatives in order to provide a response to your feedback. 

 

Is there anything that we won’t include in this process?  

An initial request for a service to be delivered is not a complaint. 

We are also unable to include matters that have an alternative statutory appeals process.  

For example:  

• appeals about parking fines/penalty charge certificates  

• appeals about homeless decision  

• appeals about points allocation in your application for council housing  

• appeals about planning applications/decisions  

• planning consultation responses  

• appeals about recharge fees for repairs  

• appeals about fixed penalties  

• matters subject to legal action  

• political comments  

• complaints from staff about personnel issues  

This list is not exhaustive.  

  

What will we do when we receive your feedback?  

• acknowledge and respond to your feedback within the timeframes outlined in this 

procedure 

• in our acknowledgement, tell you the name of the person or service that will deal with 

your feedback  

• if the investigation results in complexities which mean we can’t meet our own 

timescales we will keep you fully informed  

• in our response tell you what we are able to do or what we are not able to do and why  

• admit when things go wrong  

• learn from your feedback, and share that learning across the organisation   

• if this process does not cover your complaint (eg if there is a statutory right of appeal 

etc) we will advise you the course of action you need to take  

  

The process  

We want to make it as easy as possible for you to feedback to us, you can do this by:  

  

• filling in a feedback form online http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CustomerFeedback   

• email Customer services customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk    

• customer contact with SKDC service areas    

• call our customer service team on 01476 406080  

• fill in a feedback form – available from our customer service centres in Grantham and 

Bourne 

• write us a letter and send it to:  

[Service name] 

70

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8599
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/feedback


 

   5  

South Kesteven District Council  

Council Offices  

St Peters Hill  

Grantham Lincs  

NG31 6PZ  

   

Compliments  

Customer’s don’t always have the time to let us know if they have been particularly pleased 

with our service so when they do we want to make sure we learn from what we did right 

and do it more!  

  

We will ensure that the positive feedback is shared with the service and if appropriate the 

individual involved and acknowledge your compliment with a response within 3 working 

days.  

  

Comments  

These are important because it could help us shape the ways services look or influence 

decisions we make in the future.  

  

We can’t guarantee that we can always make the suggested or requested changes but we 

will reply in full within 15 working days to explain why a decision or process exists in its 

current form, what we might do differently or why we won’t be able to change things in the 

future.  

  

Complaints Process 

Appendix 1 - Complaints procedure workflow  

The Council operate a two stage complaints process, after which the complaint is closed. 

The complainant can then escalate the complaint to the Ombudsman for independent 

review.  

 

Stage 1  

The Council will acknowledge a formal complaint within 3 working days and will tell you the 

name of the Officer who will be processing the complaint. This is likely to be a service 

manager for the service area the complaint relates to. You will be provided with a full 

response within 10 working days or an explanation stating why the response will not be 

ready and when the response can be expected.   

When the response at stage 1 has been sent the complaint will be classified as pending 

for 30 days, if you have not requested the complaint to be reviewed at stage 2 within the 

30 days the complaint will be closed.  

 

Request escalation to stage 2 

If you are not satisfied with the Stage 1 response, you may ask for the response to be 

reviewed at Stage 2.  Your request should include details of: 

- why you feel the response has not addressed your complaint  

- what outcome you would want from the stage 2 review 

The Council will acknowledge your request for stage 2 within 3 working days. 

 

 

 

71



 

   6  

Stage 2 

Within 30 days of receiving your stage 1 response, you requested a review of your 

complaint at stage 2. 

 

Stage 2 complaints are assigned to a senior manager who is not responsible for the 

service area the complaint relates to. The senior manager will review the previous decision 

and decide if it was fair and reasonable. The senior manager may contact you for further 

information.  

 

The stage 2 response will explain the outcome of the review and provide details of any 

actions that may be agreed. You will receive a response within 20 working days or an 

explanation stating why the response will not be ready and when the response can be 

expected but no more than a further 10 working days.    

 

Stage 2 is the final stage in our complaints process and the response will explain the 

options if you are still not satisfied with the Councils response. 

 

Local Government Ombudsman  

If you are still dissatisfied with the way your complaint has been processed, you have the 

right to ask the Local Government Ombudsman, an independent body, to investigate 

allegations of maladministration causing an injustice to anybody who has complained.   

  

This means there has been a fault in the way the Council has or has not done something 

and it has created difficulties for you personally. The Ombudsman does not usually 

criticise the merits of a decision which has been properly taken simply because someone 

may disagree with it. They will however look at the way the decision was made.   

  

The Ombudsman will not usually consider a complaint until the Council has had a chance 

to resolve the matter through its own procedure.   

  

Their contact details are:  

  

The Local Government Ombudsman  

PO Box 4771  

Coventry  

CV4 0EH  

Tel: 0300 061 0614  

Fax 024 7682 0001  

Web www.lgo.org.uk 

 

When we cannot deal with a complaint: 

• More than 3 months have passed since the problem occurred  

• The new complaint is a previous concluded complaint or you are wanting a previous 

complaint reconsidered 

• It has not personally affected you 

• If you do not escalate the complaint within 30 days 

 

 

 

72



 

   7  

Closing a complaint 

We will close a complaint: 

• When stage 1 investigation has been completed and you have not requested a review 

within 30 working days.  

• When a stage 2 response has been sent. 

• When the complainant has told us they do not want to progress the complaint any further. 

• When a resolution has been agreed between yourself as the complainant and the Council.  

If we fail to do as we say we would, the complaint can be reopened at the stage at which it 

was closed and continue as a complaint. 

• The matter is part of a legal ruling or in litigation. 

• We have explained there is nothing more we can do to resolve the matter. 

• The complainant acts in an unreasonable manner in their demands or refuses to 

cooperate with us in resolving the matter. 

 

We will inform you of the complaint being closed and our reasons for this.   The complaint 

may be reopened if there is sufficient reason such as new information relating to the initial 

complaint. 

 

Tenant complaints  

The Council has a Housing Service complaints policy and procedure, this is made 

available to you on the SKDC website and copies will be placed in the customer services 

centres in the sheltered housing schemes.  Information on how to complain will be part of 

the tenant’s handbook and will be featured in the tenant’s newsletter. 

 

The Localism Act 2011 introduced changes including that, from April 2013, tenants have a 

right to access a designated person to assist in their complaints about housing being 

resolved at a more local level. This designated person could be any MP or a councillor.   

  

In addition to this, Housing complaints which are referred to the Ombudsman service will 

now go to the Ombudsman for Housing rather than, as previously, to the Local Government 

Ombudsman. This is intended to ensure that all tenants of councils and other social 

landlords are treated consistently. 

 

Monitoring and Learning from complaints 

Complaints are important to the Council as they help identify where service improvements 

are required, this can impact and change how we deliver Council services.  We will record 

and monitor all complaints. This information will be used to help and inform Council learning 

from complaints and improve service delivery.  

 

The Council will report this information to: 

• Relevant Council committees 

• Corporate management team 

• Statutory Officers (Senior Management Team)  

 

Unreasonable persistent complaints   

On rare occasions we may have to make a difficult decision about a complainant who we 

feel is being unfair or persistent in the manner or frequency of their contact.    

  

73



 

   8  

The decision to do this will not be taken easily and will be taken by the Health and Safety 

Officer. 

  

The options that will be considered on such occasions are likely to be:  

• identifying a single point of contact within the organisation that a customer may contact 

in relation to their complaint(s)  

• only accepting contact through a particular channel (only by letter for example)  

  

In some cases we may decide that the only option is to:  

1. Refer the complaint to the Ombudsman before we have completed all the stages of our 

complaints process – this is the result of an agreement between South Kesteven District 

Council and the complainant.  

2. Advise the complainant that we cannot assist with the complaint any further and advise 

them that the next option available is to approach the Ombudsman – this may be 

necessary when South Kesteven District Council and the complainant cannot agree on 

a way forward.  In these cases, we will not contact the ombudsman but will advise the 

complainant in writing that we will not be responding to the complaint any further.  

  

In all cases of unreasonable or persistent complaints the Health and Safety Officer will 

arrange for the service area to  write to the complainant to explain why we feel the 

complaint falls into this category and what action we are taking.  

  

Complaints about a SKDC Councillor 

If you wish to complain about your local Councillor, contact:  

SKDC Monitoring Officer at legal@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Or by post: 

Legal Services Team  

South Kesteven District Council  

Council Offices  

St Peters Hill  

Grantham Lincs  

NG31 6PZ  

  

Complaints and Whistleblowing  

If a complaint or allegation is made against a member of staff, elected Member, contractor 

or volunteer working on behalf of the Council which relates to the safeguarding of children 

the matter should be referred initially to the Council’s Lead Safeguarding Officer.  

The complaint/allegation will be investigated internally and, if necessary and appropriate 

will be referred to the Police and the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) within the 

Lincolnshire County Council as per the procedures set out in the Council’s Safeguarding 

Policy.  

 

If any complaint or allegation is substantiated and the person is dismissed, resigns or 

ceases to provide his/her services or the Council ceases to use the person’s services the 

Service Manager for Human Resources will refer the allegation details directly to the 

Disclosure and Barring Service. 

 

Whistleblowing is the raising of a concern, either within the workplace or externally, about a 

danger, risk, malpractice or wrongdoing which affects others. It refers to a person who 

74

mailto:legal@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

   9  

raises an honest and reasonable concern, in the public interest, about a possible fraud, 

crime, danger or other serious risk that could threaten colleagues, service users, 

customers, members of the public or the success and reputation of the organisation. 

To report wrongdoing please visit: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/wrongdoing   

 

Anonymous complaints 

Complaining anonymously is not encouraged, however, we will do our best to investigate 

and deal with the complaint in the best way possible. We prefer to know who you are so 

that we can keep in touch with you in regards to any queries or the outcome of the 

complaint.  

75

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8137


 

   10  

Appendix 1 - Complaints Procedure

Is the feedback a complaint 

Process as a stage 1 complaint 
A designated member of the service 

to investigate the complaint 

Process through the compliment 
or comment procedure

Y

N

Is the stage 1 response prepared 
within 10 working days?

Acknowledge complaint within 3 working days

Send stage 1 response to the complainant 

Y

Write to the complainant and provide an 
explanation stating:
- Why the response will not be ready
- When the response can be expected

N

Complaint stage 1 pending

Feedback received 

Complainant escalates complaint to stage 2 
within 30 days of stage 1 response date

Stage 2 complaint assigned to a senior 
manager at SMT or CMT level 

Stage 2 complaint reviewed to determine if 
the stage 1 decision was fair and reasonable 

Is the stage 2 response prepared within 20 
working days? 

Write to the complainant and provide an 
explanation stating:
- Why the response will not be ready
- When the response can be expected
This must be sent no more than a further 
10 working days

N

Send stage 2 response to the complainant 

Y

Stage 2 is the final stage of the process 

If you are still dissatisfied with the way your complaint has been processed, you have the right to ask 
the Local Government Ombudsman to investigate. Their contact details are: 
The Local Government Ombudsman 
PO Box 4771 
Coventry 
CV4 0EH
Tel: 0300 061 0614  /  Web www.lgo.org.uk

 

76



 

 

 

Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

7 September 2021 

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten, 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance  

         
  

 

Update on Local Authority Searches    

This report provides the Committee an update regarding land charges and the process mapping 
exercise that is being undertaken.   

 

Report Author 

Debbie Roberts, Interim Organisational Development and Change Manager  

 
01476 406080 

 debbie.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 26 August 2021  

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 27 August 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance  

27 August 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the update regarding Local Authority searches and that there is no longer a 
backlog and at the time of writing this report the average turnaround for searches 
was 4 days.  

2. For the Committee to review and monitor the KPI’s around Local Authority 
searches as part of its work programme as delegated by Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

77

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Governance and Audit Committee at its previous meetings have received information 

regarding the performance relating to Local Authority searches. The Committee 

considered a report on the performance and delegated the  Finance, Economic 

Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee review future 

information as part of the KPI’s. 

1.2 This report sets out the current performance and plans for improvement.  

1.3 As reported to previous Committees the average turnaround times had been longer; the 

average was 22 days for a full search at the end of April but in May this had risen again to 

27 days and at its highest reached 32 days due to staff holidays and sickness.  

1.4 On 1 May 2021, the Land Charges function transferred from Planning to Legal and 

Democratic Services. Since that time it has emerged that: 

a. the service had been under-resourced.  

b. The significant influx of demand was not matched by an increase in resource. This 

has resulted in the backlog. 

c. Due to the backlog, much time has been spent answering emails and phone calls 

from solicitors whose clients are under time pressures to exchange contracts, and 

this has taken resources away from processing searches. 

d. The planning system (Uniform) and the land charges system (Total Land Charges 

‘TLC’) do not fully integrate. Updates to Uniform cause delays within TLC and this 

has a knock-on effect to the search turnaround times. 

e. The Council does not have an up-to-date GIS mapping process, as a result of 

which the Land Charges Team have to manually duplicate data to ensure 

accuracy. This and many other such anomalies add delay into the process.  

f. There is no resilience for staff taking holiday; the effect is for performance to dip. 

g. There is no current Service Delivery Plan for Land Charges and therefore no 

strategic approach to the service. 

h. Benchmarking suggests that the salaries are not competitive and this needs to be 

addressed.  

i. The stamp duty holiday was extended to the end of June 2021.  

1.5 Some immediate measures have been put in place to address the issues: 

a. Additional resources have been secured to clear the backlog; 

b. Additional overtime hours have been approved to clear the backlog; 

c. Support from a neighbouring Authority, which has successfully reviewed and 

improved its own Land Charges service has been brought in and is currently 

reviewing systems and processes. The scope for the exercise was;  

d. Phase One focussing on service performance. Key to this is the engagement and 

communication with the Land Charges team. SKDC have the opportunity to 

explore Phase Two;  

e. The second phase will provide a holistic review of the service delivery and make 

recommendations for sustainable improvements and performance management.  

78



 

 
 

1.6 By implementing the immediate measures there is now no backlog with processing and 

officers are now turning around requests in 4 days (the Service target is 10 days).  

1.7 Internal audit has completed an assurance review, as requested by members, this review 

and the outcomes from the process mapping exercise will inform the future Service Plans 

and also the level of permanent resources that are needed in the team.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to review and consider the KPIs as part of its performance monitoring. 

Governance and Audit Committee have received updates at their meetings on 9th June 

2021 and 21st July 2021.  

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 A temporary budget increase has been provided to the service in order to deal with the 

performance pressures, however any ongoing increase in resource will need to be 

considered as part of the budget setting process for 2022/23 onwards.  

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Section 151 Officer 

4 Legal and Governance Implications 

4.1 The short term improvements will ensure that searches are done in a timely way, to assist 

house sales to complete by contractually agreed timeframes. 

   Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic 

Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 Not applicable  

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 The risks are to legal deadlines and reputation. The service improvements have mitigated 

these risks but the service and process mapping will identify areas for the team to work in 

a more cohesive way so that the backlog issue does not arise again. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 Not applicable  

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

8.1 Automation and good e-systems will reduce the usage of paper. 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 9th June 2021.  

9.2 Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on the 21st July 2021  

10 Appendices 

10.1 None   

79



 

 
 

Report Timeline: Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

9 June 2021 

Final Decision date   Ongoing  

 

80



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 

ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 
HISTORY DATE(S) 

CORPORATE/ 
PRIORITY 

23 November 2021 

Rent Guarantee 
Scheme 

An update on the progress of the 
scheme 
Lead Officer: 
Andrew Cotton (Director for 
Growth and Property) 
 

To note the update Requested to be added 
the Work Programme at a 
mid-point in the Municipal 
Year - agreed by the 
Committee 23 February 
2021. 

Housing the Meets the 
Needs of all Residents 

Invest to Save To provide information on Invest to 
Save 
Lead Officer: TBC 

To note Requested to be added 
the Work Programme at a 
mid-point in the Municipal 
Year - agreed by the 
Committee 23 February 
2021. 

Housing the Meets the 
Needs of all Residents 

Corporate Plan Key 
Performance 
Indicators – 2021/22 
Mid-Year Update 

Half Year Report 2021/22 and 
proposed changes following annual 
review. 
Lead Officers: 
Ken Lyon (Deputy Chief 
Executive) 
Ben Russell (Performance Lead) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To enable scrutiny and 
challenge around Council 
performance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mid-year reporting. High Performing 
Council 

81

A
genda Item

 11



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

15 February 2022 

Impact of Brexit A report on the impact Brexit has 
had on the Council and 
Community.  
Lead Officer: TBC 

Members to note. Requested at 23 
February meeting of the 
Committee. 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Impact of COVID-19 A report on the impact of COVID-
19 has had on the Council and 
Community.  
Lead Officer: TBC 

Members to note. Requested at 23 
February meeting of the 
Committee. 

Growth and our 
Economy 

3 May 2022 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



 
 

Unscheduled Items 

• Housing Capital Expenditure – For the Committee to receive a report on how Housing Capital Expenditure is project planned for 
future years.  

• COVID Recovery Reserve Funding – For the Committee to receive details of the proposed criteria to be used when determining how 
the COVID Recovery Reserve is allocated.  

• Analysis of the Lessons learned and cost savings from the 15/18 months of the Pandemic – For the Committee to receive a 
report that provides analysis of the lessons learned and the cost savings during the 15/18 months of the pandemic.  

• IT Investment Road Map Plan 

• Transformation and Change 

• Delivery of affordable housing in the District.  

• Economic Development Strategy and role of InvestSK Ltd - SKDC Economic Development Strategy, the scope of Invest SK and 
how the Economic Development Strategy will be delivered.  

• Grantham Town Centre - Continuation of Joint Scrutiny of Grantham Town Centre - Consideration of business occupancy rates in 
Grantham, and business survival rates, with additional consideration to post COVID-19 recovery and the changing face of the high 
street.  

• Future High Street Funding – The Committee to be kept informed of progress. 

• Local Authority Search Figures – referred from Governance & Audit Committee (9/12/21) to consider the performance of Local 

Authority Search Figures 

 
 

 

83



 
 

REMIT 
The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Business rate relief 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure 

• Charitable rate relief 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Street parking permits 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 

• Budget monitoring 

• Review of outturn 

• Fees and charges 

• Budget setting 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Performance reporting 

• Data protection policy 

• Customer access strategy 
 

84


	Agenda
	4 Action notes of the meeting held on 20 July 2021
	6 Breathing Space Update
	7 Finance Update Report: April - July 2021
	Appendix A - 2021-22 General Fund Revenue Summary
	Appendix B - 2021-22 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis
	Appendix C - 2021-22 General Fund Capital Programme
	Appendix D - 2021-22 General Fund Reserves
	Appendix E - 2021-22 HRA Revenue Summary
	Appendix F - 2021-22 HRA Capital Programme
	Appendix G - 2021-22 HRA Reserves
	Appendix H - 2021-22 Cash Flow Forecast
	Appendix I - 2021-22 Finance Risk Register

	8 Review of Special Expense Areas
	9 Progress on the New Customer Feedback Process
	Appendix 1 - PID Corporate Complaints Draft
	Appendix 2 - Customer Feedback Procedure Review

	10 Update on Local Authority Searches
	11 Work Programme 2021 - 2022

